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          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: The Committee on

          3  Governmental Operations is called to order. And we

          4  would like to thank you for your wonderful presence

          5  on this beautiful sunshiny day, and anyone who would

          6  like to send us a letter of thanks for being inside

          7  on a day like this, any letter to that effect will

          8  be clearly appreciated.

          9                 Today the Committee on Governmental

         10  Operation will review the Fiscal Year 1999

         11  Preliminary Mayor's Management Report, the PMMR. At

         12  this time I would like to welcome the Director of

         13  the Mayor's Office of Operation, Mr. Adam Barsky.

         14                 Today the Committee on Governmental

         15  Operations is holding its annual oversight hearing

         16  on the PMMR, examining the information in the book,

         17  as well as its presentation.

         18                 In this hearing, the Committee looks

         19  for ways to improve the PMMR so that it provides

         20  richer information and enhances readers'

         21  understanding.

         22                 The Committee will also discuss the

         23  written response of the Administration to the

         24  Council's full review of the Mayor's Management

         25  Report, the MMR.
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          2                 Today I am pleased to report a major

          3  improvement with the format of the PMMR, the

          4  inclusion of prior year, actual four-month data, for

          5  indications in volume 2 that can be directly

          6  compared to current year four-month data.

          7                 This is a change that the Council and

          8  other MMR users have wanted for a long time. While

          9  the content and format of the PMMR have

         10  progressively improved, there remain areas of

         11  concern that still could use improvement.

         12                 The PMMR section on agency internal

         13  control is one such area.

         14                 This section of the PMMR details the

         15  weakness of agency management practices in achieving

         16  effective and efficient operations while controlling

         17  fraud and waste during the prior fiscal year.

         18                 The information provided in this

         19  section is limited to brief narrative descriptions

         20  of agency issues which need to be expanded in the

         21  future.

         22                 Additionally, there is no attempt to

         23  identify trends. In an effort to make this section

         24  more useful I directed staff to explore some ways of

         25  enhancing the information providing in this segment
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          2  of the PMMR.

          3                 Our efforts are contained in today's

          4  Committee briefing papers. As you see, the Committee

          5  briefing papers use the information for internal

          6  agency controls provided in the last four PMMRs to

          7  graphically represent trends in weakness areas for

          8  agencies and the Administration as a whole.

          9                 This type of analysis could

         10  compliment more detail narrative descriptions and

         11  expand the depth of the presentation.

         12                 I encourage you and your staff to

         13  review this material, not just to consider

         14  restructuring this section of the PMMR, but also to

         15  take a hard look as to whether there are systemic

         16  internal control weaknesses in specific agencies as

         17  well as across agencies requiring more vigorous

         18  attention from the Administration in the months

         19  ahead.

         20                 In addition to reviewing these

         21  aspects of the PMMR today, I would also like to

         22  focus on another area of interest to the Committee,

         23  the upcoming Government Performance Project and its

         24  value to New York City. The Government Performance

         25  Project is a nationwide study of federal, state and
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          2  local government management practices across a

          3  variety of critical areas ranging from financial

          4  management, to human resources, to managing for the

          5  Government Performance Project, has now brought

          6  forth results.  The Government Performance Project

          7  is now reviewing the 35 largest city governments in

          8  the country, by revenue, including New York City.

          9                 This comprehensive study will give

         10  New York City access to a pool of best management

         11  practices engaged in by our counterparts across the

         12  country from which we can learn.

         13                 Another benefit is that even now

         14  before the study is completed, we can evaluate how

         15  we do business today using the criteria established

         16  by the Government Performance Project.

         17                 In the context of the PMMR hearing, I

         18  am interested in discussing the Government

         19  Performance Project focus area, Managing For

         20  Results.

         21                 In particular, I want to explore and

         22  learn more about the Administration's strategic

         23  planning efforts for individual agencies and City

         24  government as a whole.

         25                 The cornerstone of Managing for
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          2  Results is long term, inclusive, visionary planning.

          3  Citizens and elected officials must be included in

          4  goal and priority settings if the planning process

          5  is to be as effective and useful as it can be.

          6                 I am not confident that stake holders

          7  are adequately included in this process to the

          8  extent that they should be, and I would like to

          9  understand how the Administration intends to rectify

         10  this.

         11                 At this time, I would like to call

         12  the first witness, Mr. Adam Barsky, Director of the

         13  Mayor's Office of Operations.

         14                 Mr. Barsky.

         15                 MR. BARKSY: Yes, hi. Good afternoon,

         16  Chairwoman Pinkett.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Good afternoon.

         18                 MR. BARSKY: It is good to see you

         19  again today. I was happy to see you at the Mayor's

         20  monthly cabinet meeting this morning.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you. This

         22  is our second meeting together today.

         23                 MR. BARKSY: That's right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay.

         25                 MR. BARKSY: I would like to just read
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          2  my brief statement and hopefully get into more

          3  specifically some of your questions.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Before you do

          5  that, just let me acknowledge at least for the

          6  record the presence of two of our Council members so

          7  far, the others I am sure are on their way or in

          8  other meetings and will be joining us.

          9                 MR. BARKSY: Sure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: But to my left,

         11  Council Member Sabini, from Queens; and to my right,

         12  Council Member Harrison from Queens. I am

         13  Councilwoman Pinkett from Brooklyn.

         14                 Please proceed. Thank you.

         15                 MR. BARSKY: Thank you.

         16                 My name is Adam Barsky, Director of

         17  the Mayor's Office of Operations. Thank you for the

         18  opportunity to testify and answer your questions

         19  concerning the Preliminary Fiscal 1999 Mayor's

         20  Management Report, which covers the performance of

         21  City agencies during the period July 1, 1998,

         22  through October 31st, 1998, and where possible

         23  includes data through December 1998 or January 1999

         24  in key areas.

         25                 Today we will again be discussing the
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          2  City's progress in making the MMR the best possible

          3  tool for management, reflecting the needs of its

          4  users, the principles of performance-based

          5  management that have inspired local government

          6  reforms across the nation and the planning and

          7  performance of City agencies.

          8                 New York City government operates by

          9  performance-based management, the results of service

         10  efforts are quantified, programs are designed and

         11  implemented in terms of the anticipated impact on

         12  performance measures and changes are made in

         13  response to observe trends.

         14                 The MMR provides only a snapshot of

         15  this tracking and decision-making process, which

         16  continues within agencies and oversight units on a

         17  year-round basis.

         18                 The reporting cycle for the MMR adds

         19  value to this process by providing a framework for

         20  judging performance and by requiring formal

         21  consistent explanations for shortfalls.

         22                 The report also allows the Mayor and

         23  his senior managers to set forth policies in a

         24  coordinated manner encompassing all critical agency

         25  services. Most of all, the MMR is valuable to the
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          2  extent that it helps shape the actions of government

          3  providing services. This is the one justification

          4  for the use of agency resources in producing the

          5  report, and this is the criterion by which all

          6  previous efforts and future proposals for the format

          7  and content of the MMR must be judged.

          8                 We are proud of the innovations

          9  introduced to the MMR during the Giuliani

         10  Administration. Agency goals and objectives are now

         11  prominently stated giving users insight into agency

         12  strategic planning and highlighting plans and

         13  performance in priority areas.

         14                 Statistical charts have become a

         15  major means of relaying historical trends

         16  information for an increasing variety of performance

         17  indicators.

         18                 An extensive set of measures has been

         19  introduced regarding agency procurement activity.

         20  Two important innovations have occurred in the

         21  Preliminary Fiscal 1999 MMR. As you have stated

         22  earlier, inclusion of historical comparisons for

         23  four-month indicator values and of indicators giving

         24  the status of the City's computer preparation work

         25  for the Year 2000.
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          2                 We have been responsive to the

          3  Council and other users in shaping these

          4  innovations. You had requested more long-term trend

          5  data. We have provided more such data and we will do

          6  more in this direction. You requested four-month

          7  historical comparisons. We have complied and you

          8  have stressed the value of thematic indicator tables

          9  combining measurements from different agencies, and

         10  we have continued to increase the use of this format

         11  in the MMR.

         12                 The Council and other users expressed

         13  interest in procurement indicators. We have worked

         14  with the Mayor's Office of Contracts to provide

         15  these measures, which will again be expanded in

         16  Fiscal 1999 final MMR.

         17                 This Committee's report on the Fiscal

         18  1998 MMR devoted considerable attention to the

         19  problems revealed by those indicators in the area of

         20  contract evaluations, problems that are now being

         21  addressed by the Office of Contracts in

         22  collaboration with the relevant agencies.

         23                 This is an example of the MMR

         24  fulfilling its function by prompting needed action

         25  in a specific area of agency operations.
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          2                 Having reviewed this Committee's

          3  statement or priority issues for enhancement of the

          4  MMR, I am able to tell you that we will address

          5  several of these issues in coming reports.

          6                 First, we will expand our reviews of

          7  the data integrity interpretation of key MMR

          8  indicators, and will continue to keep Council staff

          9  informed of our activities.

         10                 One area in which this work will

         11  begin shortly is in regard to the City's enumeration

         12  of public assistance recipients participating in

         13  work activities, include the Work Experience Program

         14  and other concurrent activities.

         15                 I recognize that the City must

         16  develop new means of evaluating its mission to move

         17  recipients toward employment and I believe this

         18  review will help advance that effort.

         19                 Second, we will adopt your

         20  recommendation concerning the presentation of

         21  five-year historical trend data for numeric

         22  indicators that are included in agency goals and

         23  objectives. Those now marked with arrows, as

         24  indicated. Facilitating access to longer-term data

         25  will increase the focus of both agencies and users
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          2  on these key measures.

          3                 Third, we will identify new areas for

          4  thematic indicator tables in future reports. As a

          5  start, we will restore the table combining

          6  indicators on services to children and youth to the

          7  Fiscal 1999 MMR.

          8                 We are at work to update this table

          9  through Fiscal 1998 and will shortly forward it to

         10  you and your staff.

         11                 Fourth, we have begun an analysis of

         12  the MMR indicators focusing on how key output

         13  indicators relate to the City's budget.

         14                 Although I cannot predict whether

         15  this analysis will lead to a performance-based

         16  budgeting pilot as envisioned in your comments, the

         17  exercise will deepen our understanding of how the

         18  budget affects agency planning and performance.

         19                 Fifth, we will increase our efforts

         20  to identify appropriate external benchmarks

         21  comparing New York City performance with other

         22  localities.

         23                 Although this type of analysis is

         24  complex, i foresee a significant increase in

         25  external benchmarking within the next two reports.
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          2                 We have also begun planning for a

          3  user survey to be included with the release of the

          4  Preliminary Fiscal 2000 MMR. The survey will be

          5  widely distributed to all MMR recipients, and will

          6  have two purposes: to identify those features of the

          7  report regarded as most useful and least useful by

          8  our customers; and to document the ways in which

          9  report information is used in the business of

         10  government.

         11                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         12  testify. I and my staff are ready to respond to your

         13  questions.

         14                 If you would like, what I will do now

         15  is just touch on some of the points that you raised

         16  just now that was not included in the testimony or

         17  just further elaborate on those.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: You may proceed.

         19                 MR. BARSKY: Okay.

         20                 We do feel it is important to include

         21  the internal audit indicators and we do find that

         22  those are very useful.

         23                 However, the internal audit process

         24  is an ongoing process that is tremendously

         25  intensive, both the Mayor's Office, together with
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          2  the Comptroller's Office works very carefully with

          3  each agency to review their internal controls, not

          4  only on an annual basis but in between to look at

          5  the recommendations that have been made and

          6  follow-up to see if they have been implemented and

          7  they are constantly changing.

          8                 We also are -- New York City is

          9  probably one of the most, not only reviewed, but

         10  audited entities, municipalities in the country, and

         11  as such we are constantly working with the State

         12  Comptroller's Office, the City Comptroller's Office,

         13  our outside external auditors, KPMG, Pete Marwick,

         14  to go over internal control reviews, as well as we

         15  do work with federal agencies, such as OMB in

         16  complying with single audit acts under the OMB

         17  circular A133, as well as HUD and other federal

         18  agencies to comply with all of their mandates. All

         19  of these oversights require extensive review of

         20  internal controls and see to it that areas of

         21  weaknesses are looked at and recommendations are

         22  made that are followed up and implemented. So, we

         23  are constantly working on this on an ongoing basis

         24  and there are areas where more detailed information

         25  can be obtained on internal audits, such as through
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          2  the Mayor's Office of the Comptroller's Office with

          3  respect to specific areas.

          4                 However, we try to, in the MMR,

          5  provide a snapshot or at least a summary of those

          6  areas in a brief format without it overshadowing the

          7  other areas of the report.

          8                 The GPP Project that was mentioned,

          9  we are excited about and are looking forward to

         10  working with those people from both Governing

         11  Magazine and the Maxwell School, Syracuse, to show

         12  New York City in its best light, and we are very

         13  confident that we will receive a very good grade as

         14  a result of the study.

         15                 We do believe that we are excelling

         16  in many of the areas that are focused in the report

         17  and probably more so than other municipalities,

         18  especially in the areas of strategic planning, which

         19  is one of the other areas that you had mentioned.

         20  And New York City, unlike the state or the federal

         21  government provides every year, or at least twice a

         22  year in its budget planning process, a four-year

         23  financial plan. Very few municipalities actually do

         24  that. And that is probably one of the best examples

         25  of strategic planning you can get, because not only
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          2  do we look at the impact of the decisions that are

          3  made in the current budget, but we also see how

          4  those decisions and impacts on outyear budgets and

          5  the management of outyear gaps and the closing of

          6  those gaps and preparing for the future in our

          7  capital planning process as well.

          8                 Other areas that we do in terms --

          9  strategic planning is an area that is done

         10  frequently and extensively throughout this City.

         11  Certainly the MMR is one of the best documents, as

         12  well, to look at in terms of a strategic planning

         13  document whereby missions are reviewed and analyzed

         14  and restated each year, goals and objectives and

         15  activities that are actually going to be undertaken

         16  to reach those goals and objectives are constantly

         17  reviewed and modified on an ongoing basis.

         18                 And over the last few years there has

         19  been a much greater effort to link those efforts in

         20  goals and objectives and mission statements of the

         21  agencies to their budgeting process so that the

         22  resources that they are allocated are allocated in

         23  such a way as to enable them to meet their goals and

         24  objectives and their core mission.

         25                 As you know, the Charter mandates
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          2  every four years the Mayor present a strategic

          3  policy statement. This was last done in 1994, and it

          4  is currently being worked on right now, which is

          5  being spearheaded and coordinated by the Department

          6  of City Planning. That process involves all of the

          7  stakeholders, significant input has been solicited

          8  from City agencies, Council, Borough Presidents, the

          9  community boards and anybody else willing to

         10  participate and provide their input. All of that

         11  information right now is being collected and

         12  analyzed in order to provide a strategic planning

         13  document as the strategic planning statement by the

         14  Mayor.

         15                 I can give you other examples and we

         16  can go on, but those are what I think are probably

         17  the most extensive and important ones and we do

         18  agree with you that strategic planning is incredibly

         19  important and we are doing everything we can to make

         20  sure that all of those activities with regard to

         21  strategic planning are being done in a coordinated

         22  and cohesive way so that they all fit with each

         23  other.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Before I answer

         25  your question, I would like to acknowledge the
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          2  presence of Councilman Reed from Manhattan and the

          3  Bronx who has joined us, to my left.

          4                 I appreciate your response to many of

          5  our questions, however, in terms of your strategic

          6  planning and the things that you are doing, you

          7  mentioned that you talked to people and you have

          8  gotten information from City Planning and from

          9  others, and to Council members. Now, I am a Council

         10  member, no one has approached me. Council Member

         11  Harrison?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Not that I

         13  am aware of.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Council Member

         15  Sabini, Council Member Reed, has anyone approached

         16  you in terms of planning for your area for the City?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: No.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay. Obviously

         19  we are a microcosm of the City of New York and

         20  someone has forgotten that we are members of the

         21  City Council of the City and we are not here to work

         22  against you but to work with you, because our

         23  concern for this City is, I think, indeed very

         24  important.

         25                 We represent, of course, local
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          2  districts, but we also are very concerned about the

          3  success of our local areas but of the City as a

          4  whole, and we know that no one has spoken to us.

          5                 Now, the people who are doing the

          6  planning, where did they come from? How did you

          7  engage them? How did you decide on who would be the

          8  ones who would come forward with this survey, who

          9  would be determined, who the stakeholders were to be

         10  consulted?

         11                 MR. BARSKY: Well, as I stated before,

         12  I believe the effort is being coordinated by the

         13  Department of City Planning, as far as the strategic

         14  policy statement, and from some of the material that

         15  I have had the opportunity to review, that there had

         16  been solicitations done throughout the City

         17  agencies, which has their own process of soliciting

         18  input from the community in ways in which they feel

         19  are the most important.

         20                 As well, the Borough Presidents and

         21  community boards I know specifically have provided

         22  submissions.

         23                 Now, I may have been mistaken in

         24  terms of whether or not Council was specifically

         25  solicited, but it was my assumption that through the
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          2  community board submission process would have been

          3  where some certain Council member input would have

          4  been solicited or provided.

          5                 If that has not been done, we

          6  couldn't help you and assist you in seeing to it

          7  that your specific input gets relayed as well, with

          8  regard to the borough specific or the areas in which

          9  you represent can be properly represented input.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I think most of

         11  us or all of us are involved with our community

         12  boards, and if such a survey was being taken, I

         13  think we would be aware of that also.

         14                 MR. BARKSY: Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: And I am not

         16  aware of that either.

         17                 But let me just say this --

         18                 MR. BARKSY: Sure.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I had the

         20  pleasure of attending a seminar with a person from

         21  the city of Scottsdale, Arizona, and they won an

         22  award for their strategic planning, and they served

         23  as a model for strategic planning. They did win an

         24  award for that, and everyone who attended this

         25  particular session, and they were from cities
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          2  throughout the United States, came away very, very

          3  impressed by the presentation, the fact that was

          4  most striking was that it was not just City agencies

          5  alone that determined what the process should be,

          6  but that there were, the public involved, that there

          7  were open sessions where the people of the City had

          8  an opportunity to hear and to be informed, and to

          9  have input. There was an integration of this

         10  planning with the public, the elected officials,

         11  agencies, public agencies, of course, strategy

         12  development, financial planning, there was

         13  communication and everyone knew what was going on

         14  and understood this new system of strategic planning

         15  that was coming into effect.

         16                 Now, the people who were there were

         17  Mayors, managers of City, City managers, Council

         18  members, as well as the people of those communities

         19  who had participated in such an action.

         20                 Now, in New York City, even with the

         21  -- I would say the opportunity to go into the

         22  various communities, that has not happened. And it

         23  would seem to me that if we were talking about

         24  strategic planning, that can happen just the same

         25  way you plan your town meetings or your town hall

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  meetings, we could all be involved in that process,

          3  the Council Members, the public, the elected

          4  officials, the agency heads, not-for-profit

          5  organizations,  everyone would know, would

          6  understand, would get information, but this would

          7  become a policy that would bring people together,

          8  and I know it is a large operation, I know that it

          9  is going to take a tremendous effort, but it would

         10  be a marvelous way to educate the people of the City

         11  of New York and to bring the people together in

         12  planning and understand what governance is about and

         13  could be under strategic planning.

         14                 And I think it makes a big

         15  difference, when it's done with just agency heads

         16  who have done all of the planning all along, I think

         17  you risk repeating some of the same errors because

         18  you ask the same people basically to do the same

         19  things that they have been doing all along, and what

         20  you need is an opening of the window.

         21                 Does that sound far-fetched to you?

         22                 MR. BARSKY: Not at all. I think that

         23  is a very good idea and something we will take back

         24  to your suggestion, to see whether or not there is a

         25  willingness to go ahead and formalize something like
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          2  this, but certainly we will be happy to look at any

          3  information or that you could share with us on the

          4  experience with the City of Scottsdale and certainly

          5  we are always looking to other municipalities for

          6  ideas and we have never been too proud to borrow

          7  from them in the past, as you know, within a lot of,

          8  many of our programs, whether it be the

          9  Adopt-A-Highway Program or some of the other

         10  programs that we have implemented in the last few

         11  years with our quality of life programs, have

         12  actually been borrowed from other municipalities

         13  where they have been very successful, so this is

         14  something, too, that we would be happy to take a

         15  look at.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I believe also,

         17  isn't there a document that was supposed to be

         18  shared with the City Council by November of last

         19  year that we have not seen as yet for Council review

         20  in terms of strategic planning? Has that been

         21  released?

         22                 MR. BARSKY: There has been no

         23  document released that I am aware of, but as soon as

         24  it is released, I will make sure that it is shared

         25  with you and your staff.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay. This is

          3  for our review; in other words, this is not the

          4  final document, as I understand it --

          5                 MR. BARSKY: Sure.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: -- But that the

          7  Council will review that document and then from this

          8  there should come a final document but the Council

          9  would have input in that document.

         10                 Council Member Sabini.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you,

         12  Madame Chair.

         13                 Just sort of a number of things that

         14  I wanted to raise. With regard to strategic

         15  planning, yes, there are hearings of the Citywide

         16  statement of needs, for example, and the like, and

         17  we send staff to those and the community boards

         18  participate in those and also in the five-year

         19  budgetary process, but the Charter really doesn't

         20  give us, other than through the budget process, a

         21  formal role, other than receiving the Citywide

         22  Statement of Needs. But I think maybe what the Chair

         23  is getting at is that we have -- you have an Office

         24  of Operations seeking to do this, you have a lot of

         25  bright people that work for you, and maybe
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          2  consultations with us in an ad hoc basis, that you

          3  would receive information from us might not be such

          4  a bad idea.

          5                 We send either Council members or

          6  staff, or at least I do, to hearings like the

          7  Citywide Statement of Needs hearing, and the borough

          8  session of that, and in fact I have learned things

          9  at those hearings that I didn't otherwise know. But

         10  you could learn things from us that you wouldn't

         11  otherwise know, too.

         12                 For example, at one hearing a couple

         13  of years ago, I found a water tunnel shaft proposal

         14  that was going to be at exactly the same spot the

         15  Board of Ed was acquiring for a school, and after a

         16  series of five or six meetings, after the writing

         17  the Citywide Statement of Needs, we were able to

         18  sort this out for everyone. So, sometimes having us

         19  involved is not such a bad thing, it may save money

         20  in the longrun.

         21                 Yesterday's Yankee broadcast reminded

         22  me of a statement by Vince Scully from years ago

         23  that too often applies to the MMR, and that is that

         24  statistics are too often used, like a drunk uses a

         25  lamppost for support and not illumination. I think
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          2  you have improved things, but still one feels

          3  sometimes that the indicators are for support rather

          4  than illumination.

          5                 A couple of times now I have asked

          6  you and your predecessors about the method of

          7  complaint that is reflected in the MMR and whether

          8  by phone, letter or on line, and I think that would

          9  be helpful in gauging performance.  Before your

         10  arrival in your job, the Council Investigation's

         11  Unit issued a report about It's In The Mail, which

         12  showed that many agencies were very slow to respond

         13  to mailed complaints.

         14                 In 1997, the Office of Operations

         15  told us that it would be ready in the not too

         16  distant future, a way to implement data breakdown on

         17  complaints. Last year you stated it would be looked

         18  into; where are we with it?

         19                 MR. BARSKY: With?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: With listing

         21  the method of complaint?

         22                 MR. BARKSY: Well, this is part of the

         23  ongoing process we are working with the agencies. It

         24  is not something we are specifically reporting on in

         25  the MMR; however, something we do on an ongoing
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          2  basis, on a regular basis with the agencies to

          3  ensure that one of our top priorities at the Mayor's

          4  Office of Operations is to focus on customer

          5  service, responsiveness, and one of the things that

          6  we have just recently have done, we made a major

          7  step forward, is to not only move with technology by

          8  allowing residents to have dialogue with the Mayor,

          9  Commissioners, agencies, through the Internet,

         10  through the E.mail practice, but we have also

         11  eliminated in many cases the practice of writing

         12  back to them through what they used to call "snail

         13  mail" and doing it instantaneously within E.mail.

         14  That has proven to be very successful where it has

         15  been done. So, those kind of things we are moving

         16  towards to be more responsive, as well as better use

         17  of our telephone technology, and not only providing

         18  answers to questions or information through whether

         19  or not you want to speak to a human being or through

         20  the IVR, but also be able to actually do

         21  transactions over the IVR. People now can pay for a

         22  variety of things over the telephone without having

         23  to actually come into an office and stand on line.

         24                 So, those kind of things that have

         25  been the focus of a lot of the complaints that we
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          2  are trying to eliminate by using through technology

          3  and by doing more of that, in steering people to

          4  these other methods, it is also loosening up the

          5  load in terms of the mail that comes in that needs

          6  to be responded to. So, those people who still

          7  contact by mail now are getting responded to more

          8  quickly because there is less of it and more people

          9  available to do it.

         10                 So, we are always looking at, and we

         11  do customer surveys constantly, where we

         12  independently, just as you have done with your

         13  investigation staff, survey the community to find

         14  out whether or not they are being responded to

         15  appropriately, what their complaints are, what their

         16  areas that can be improved, we are also using

         17  Internet for that. We do many surveys and polling

         18  over the Internet to find out what the constituents

         19  think and what is on their minds.

         20                 So, these are all the things that we

         21  are doing on a regular basis, and it has been

         22  incredibly successful. We have implemented a number

         23  of things in borough offices to move the process

         24  quickly, whether it be the Department of Buildings,

         25  the Department of Finance, Parking Violations,
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          2  introducing things such as comatic to operate and

          3  coordinate traffic flow in offices so that people

          4  can be moved in and out very quickly. All of these

          5  are areas that were sources of complaints that have

          6  now been addressed.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Okay.

          8                 MR. BARSKY: And what we have tried to

          9  do is rather than just track and monitor complaints,

         10  we really are trying to eliminate them by addressing

         11  the problem that was the source thereof.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: The first

         13  portion of your lengthy answer to my question was a

         14  further retreat from the answer of two years ago, so

         15  I would like to get back to that question, which is

         16  that our feeling that some of us, I don't speak for

         17  the Committee, would like to see the methodology of

         18  how the complaint was filed listed in the MMR.

         19  Again, in '97 we were told that would be ready in

         20  the not too distant future. In '98 you said it would

         21  be looked into. Now you are telling us even less,

         22  you know, you know it but you are not going to put

         23  it in the MMR; what would be the problem of putting

         24  it in the MMR?

         25                 MR. BARSKY: Well, I am not saying
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          2  there is a problem with putting it in the MMR, but

          3  there have been a number of things that we had to do

          4  to revise the MMR that we put ahead of that, and

          5  with those kind of suggestions we have to really

          6  weigh the cost and benefits of doing it and whether

          7  or not --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: But you said

          9  you are doing it anyway. You said that in your

         10  answer.

         11                 MR. BARSKY: Yes, but we are doing it

         12  on an operational basis, but we don't believe we are

         13  doing it in a way right now that would make

         14  reporting sense that would really end up bogging

         15  down agencies a little bit too much in reporting

         16  this, and I would rather have them responding to the

         17  complaints or addressing the complaints or

         18  eliminating the need for complaints rather than

         19  spending their time on trying to make it fit into an

         20  MMR format.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: We have had a

         22  lot of noise about the watershed, and in fact on

         23  both sides of the issue of whether their protection

         24  is too strong or too lenient sometimes with DEP

         25  being on both sides, while the PMMR agency narrative
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          2  volume includes remarks, highlights and achievements

          3  section about the watershed protection efforts, the

          4  indicators volume does not include any

          5  watershed-related stats.

          6                 Indicators relating to watershed

          7  police staffing and violations and summonses in the

          8  watershed region would be helpful. We had a fellow

          9  testify from upstate at an Environmental Protection

         10  hearing the other day saying that every time

         11  anything happens the watershed police show up.

         12                 We have had testimony to the

         13  opposite, that we have had testimony from former

         14  members of the watershed police who say that their

         15  presence in the watershed area is virtually

         16  non-existent.

         17                 It would be helpful to us to know

         18  what the real stats are, and would you consider such

         19  a category in the future of summonses and police

         20  activity in the watershed area, by the watershed

         21  police?

         22                 MR. BARSKY: Yes, I think that is

         23  something, given the attention that has been given

         24  to it recently, and as you have stated maybe some

         25  misinformation, it may lend itself very ripe to that
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          2  kind of an indicator and we believe that because of

          3  its importance and sensitivity it may very well make

          4  a lot of sense. That is something I think probably

          5  can be very doable.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Well, lastly,

          7  on a global basis, and this is the first time, you

          8  probably heard this from me, but members of the

          9  Committee who have been around awhile heard this ad

         10  nauseam, the community boards, even though some of

         11  them don't have computer systems that are operating

         12  right now, have a system of tracking complaints. It

         13  is fairly antiquated, but it's a system of tracking

         14  complaints. And those complaints I believe should

         15  somehow be factored into the Office of Operations

         16  and to OMB and the budget decision-making process;

         17  and what I mean by that is that, if a community

         18  board feels that tree pruning, for example, is a

         19  priority, they either may want more tree pruning or

         20  feel that the tree pruning they have isn't being

         21  adequately done, it would glean that judgment from

         22  the complaint filing system, and yet I believe that

         23  complaint filing system is sort of the equivalent of

         24  a dead letter office, that you don't really factor

         25  that into the budget process, yet in the City
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          2  Charter community boards have a significant role in

          3  the budget-making process and their priorities may

          4  be based on those complaints, and at any point do

          5  you review the complaints out of the tracking system

          6  that the community boards have had for some years?

          7                 MR. BARSKY: Currently right now I am

          8  not aware of a formalized process to do that, but it

          9  is something that you know we would be happy to

         10  receive from them, if they have it in a format --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: They were

         12  given a computer program back in the early eighties

         13  to do this, and frankly, I believe it just sort of

         14  gets relegated to the dust bin of nowhere.

         15                 In the prior administration there was

         16  a Task Force on Service Delivery, which issued a

         17  report and there was talk in that report of

         18  incorporating that at the suggestion of myself and

         19  others, but I find that their complaint tracking

         20  system is never reflected in OMB's decision-making

         21  on their budget priorities later on. I would like

         22  you to sort of just think about that, and think

         23  about how complaints may affect budget priorities,

         24  whether they be complaints in number or poor

         25  service.
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          2                 MR. BARSKY: Sure.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you,

          4  Madame Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you.

          6                 In response to what was asked by

          7  Council Member Sabini, you said you didn't see,

          8  including everything in the MMR, do you have a way

          9  of at least advising in writing this Committee of

         10  how you are handling those legitimate complaints or

         11  issues that were brought before you, such as the

         12  letter is in the mail?

         13                 MR. BARSKY: I think we can. I would

         14  be happy to get you a report on that within the next

         15  several weeks. We basically have created what we

         16  call a number of customer service standards that

         17  require certain things as responding to a telephone

         18  call within a number of rings, how they are to

         19  respond on the phone and how often mail is to be

         20  responded to, and there is a follow-up tracking to

         21  actually see if in fact it has taken place. Agencies

         22  are required to log all their complaints, and we do

         23  review that and audit that on a regular basis.

         24                 So, what I will do is provide you

         25  with a more specific detailed report, specifically
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          2  looking at that process and to see whether or not

          3  you have further questions or whether or not that

          4  meets your needs.

          5                 But I think getting something more

          6  detailed just on that alone probably would be more

          7  useful to you than trying to fit into some box.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: That might be

          9  useful, however, there was a specific referred to

         10  and that was, one, that there was a response given

         11  that there would be a -- there was a commitment to

         12  respond to the letters that were received. There are

         13  many people who have sent a letter who want a

         14  written response, who do not consider the request

         15  for the response by telephone, or who, for various

         16  reasons, find that not to be the response. And what

         17  we would like to know is in terms of written

         18  responses, how do you handle those? And if indeed

         19  there was a commitment that that would be in the

         20  MMR, there should be a footnote, there should be

         21  some way in which you indicate that this response

         22  has been replied to and has been replied to or these

         23  letters have been answered and that in terms of what

         24  you find, you suggest that there may be

         25  alternatives, but there ought to be in accordance
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          2  with prior testimony an indication how you have

          3  handled that particular procedure. And we are

          4  looking for that answer.

          5                 MR. BARSKY: Sure.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: We want that

          7  answer. Is that clear?

          8                 MR. BARSKY: Yes, it is.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you.

         10                 MR. BARSKY: Sure.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Council Member

         12  Harrison.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: And Council

         15  Member Rivera, from the Bronx has joined us.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: One of my

         18  questions to you is, when I have a problem, are you

         19  suggesting to me that I can write to your agency, to

         20  you, to get my complaint registered as part of the

         21  agency complaint for the MMR inclusion?

         22                 In other words, if I have a series of

         23  complaints against the Police Department or the City

         24  Planning Commission or DOT or anyone like that, and

         25  I write to these agencies and I am not satisfied
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          2  with any answers, how does that relationship between

          3  me and the agency be included in the MMR? Do you

          4  reflect my concerns in any way?

          5                 MR. BARSKY: Right now, no, we don't

          6  specifically.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Well, let me

          8  just suggest to you, I have great difficulty

          9  accessing my local police precinct. This is not

         10  something that happened yesterday, I am in office 14

         11  years, for 14 years I can never get through to the

         12  Police Department.

         13                 I am making a call as any other

         14  citizen is making a call. If we can't get a response

         15  to the telephone system, which over the years has

         16  been promised to have been upgraded, or refurbished,

         17  I find that of great flaw in the service being

         18  rendered by the Police Department in my district.

         19                 How would that be reflected? How are

         20  you questioning the quality of service you are

         21  expecting from the City or you want to give to your

         22  constituents? Is there an answer?

         23                 MR. BARSKY: Yes. As I said before,

         24  that is something that we do on an operational basis

         25  where we do review not only the standards that we
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          2  put forth, but we see if they are complying with it

          3  --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Well, how do

          5  you determine that, how do you determine whether or

          6  not an agency is fulfilling its function? It would

          7  seem to me as a human being that I would try to not

          8  expose my weaknesses in this regard, if I were

          9  delinquent or not fulfilling to the best ability, my

         10  contacting, my responding to, my serving a

         11  constituency. I don't think I would want to show it

         12  to the Mayor's Office, how does that information get

         13  reflected into the MMR?

         14                 MR. BARSKY: Calls made to precincts

         15  are not tracked and reported in the MMR.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: And calls

         17  not even getting through.

         18                 MR. BARSKY: I don't even know if that

         19  is feasible in terms of --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Well, how do

         21  I correct a situation like that, so that the MMR --

         22                 MR. BARSKY: If you have a specific

         23  complaint --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Yes.

         25                 MR. BARSKY: Rather than addressing it
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          2  through the MMR, it would be to call, first start

          3  out by calling the appropriate people at the Police

          4  Department. If that is not successful, there are a

          5  number of other outlets you can call.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: I have

          7  written to the Commissioner as well. I mean, where

          8  do I go with it? Do I come to you? May I come to

          9  you?

         10                 MR. BARSKY: You can certainly lodge a

         11  complaint with me and I would be happy to follow it

         12  up for you to ensure that it is properly addressed

         13  and responded to, so I would be happy to do that if

         14  you have a complaint.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Thank you.

         16  Then I will be in contact with you on that, and I

         17  just wanted to share with you something that we have

         18  done in our 20th Council District, which I think was

         19  alluded to in another forum when we talked about the

         20  Scottsdale report, and that is, that my community

         21  was successful in developing a plan for the orderly

         22  development of Flushing for the Downtown Flushing

         23  area. It was a grassroots activity, sponsored by my

         24  office, involving the people, involving the

         25  merchants, involving the architects and the
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          2  professional persons, the landlords and the tenants

          3  and working in a way which probably was described by

          4  you in Scottsdale, to you in Scottsdale, we in the

          5  20th Council District did do that, and came up after

          6  a couple of years of very good application with a

          7  plan that has now been not only accepted by then

          8  current Mayor, and the Speaker's Office and the Land

          9  Use and City Planning, but it is also now being

         10  implemented to assure some kind of orderly

         11  development and upgrading of the quality of the

         12  condition of the community which had gone down the

         13  drain, okay, or pretty much down the drain.

         14                 So, I just wanted to share that with

         15  you as a fact of life that local communities within

         16  the City of New York have taken the obligation of

         17  planning because in the past, the meetings which I

         18  have attended which were public meetings held in

         19  public auditoriums, the City Planning Commission was

         20  not highly regarded as an instrument of planning, so

         21  that might be something else you put into your

         22  computer, okay?

         23                 MR. BARSKY: Sure.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Thank you.

         25                 MR. BARSKY: I appreciate it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Council Member

          3  Reed.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you,

          5  Madame Chair.

          6                 Good afternoon, Mr. Barsky. I just

          7  heard most of the comments that my colleagues have

          8  made and I subscribe to them. I do think that the

          9  Council has the unique opportunity to assist in the

         10  planning in their particular districts.

         11                 Many of us represent several

         12  different community boards, some of us have a

         13  predominant community board but there are others, I

         14  dare to say I don't think any Council Member has at

         15  least less than two in their district. And so, while

         16  it is useful, and we all are involved with community

         17  boards, to take a more comprehensive picture at what

         18  is happening here, maybe there are opposing forces

         19  in different community boards, but to see the

         20  district as a whole.

         21                 I have three distinct geographic

         22  areas in my district, the West Side, East Harlem and

         23  the South Bronx, in fact, I have two boroughs, but

         24  there is some continuity to the district in terms of

         25  the people that are there and the needs and how
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          2  things are connected and it would be I think useful

          3  to have some input in this strategic planning,

          4  otherwise we just draw these lines for political

          5  purposes and there is really no comprehensive idea

          6  of what a community is supposed to be about.

          7                 I guess the only question I have

          8  about your testimony, I was struck, you said that

          9  the Mayor issued a strategic planning report in 1994

         10  and we have to do this every four years and we are

         11  planning on doing it again soon, this is already the

         12  middle of 1999, and just is this mandated that we

         13  have this thing? And if so, why has it not happened?

         14  And you put those dates out there --

         15                 MR. BARSKY: Sure.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: -- Four plus

         17  four got me to 1998.

         18                 MR. BARSKY: I am not sure if it is a

         19  four-year or a five-year, maybe that was the

         20  difference, but in any event it is something that is

         21  Charter mandated. The process has begun, the data is

         22  being collected and analyzed, as much input as

         23  possible is being solicited.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So you don't

         25  think this is late, you think we are just getting
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          2  ready to do it on time?

          3                 MR. BARSKY: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Okay, thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay. Let me ask

          6  the Commissioner, I heard your statements in terms

          7  of, I read in terms of the WEP workers, and as you

          8  know, I have been interested in acquiring more

          9  information, regarding WEP workers in their

         10  treatment and performance in the PMMR and the MMR,

         11  and the written response, you indicated that

         12  Operations and HRA will be developing new

         13  performance measures and analytic measures to track

         14  the Administration's efforts regarding all public

         15  assistance recipients; can you tell us more about

         16  this initiative? And do you have a timetable for

         17  completing this initiative and what is that? And

         18  what measures and methods are you contemplating

         19  using?

         20                 MR. BARSKY: All right, well, as we

         21  stated at the last meeting, and again reiterate

         22  today, we are working with HRA to try to develop

         23  some methods that could be useful and reliable.

         24                 That without saying, that it has been

         25  very difficult and complex because of the ever
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          2  changing nature of the program and the fact that

          3  HRA's strategic focus has somewhat shifted in terms

          4  of working more with the job centers, doing some of

          5  the other initiatives, as having an effect on

          6  whether or not the data would continue to be

          7  reliable or consistent for that matter. But we

          8  continue to work with them on doing something that

          9  we feel that we can report that provide enough

         10  information and can actually be useful. Just merely

         11  reporting information by itself is just not enough.

         12  It has got to be in a way that we think adds value

         13  and that everybody has agreed with.

         14                 We continue to look for your input,

         15  we have worked very closely with Jay and Peter and

         16  taken a lot of their comments, and as you have seen

         17  from the last report that came out, we have in fact

         18  delivered on many of the promises and requests have

         19  been made to include a number of the different

         20  indicators and factors that you have requested to be

         21  included in the report. So, we have been able to

         22  make a lot of progress in getting the document to

         23  constantly evolve in a way that we feel is better

         24  and also trying to take on those recommendations

         25  that are very useful and helpful. So we have been
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          2  able to accomplish a lot.

          3                 So, this is one of the areas that we

          4  find to be very difficult but we continue to work to

          5  try to do it, and we will be happy to sit with your

          6  staff and HRA to come up with something everybody

          7  agrees would make sense.

          8                 We don't want to put something in

          9  there that people really then say you have given us

         10  some information but we really don't know what to do

         11  with it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Commissioner,

         13  let me first say to you, I am appreciative of your

         14  cooperation and I think your testimony and your

         15  offer to be cooperative, even to the point of the

         16  questions that you received today and attempted to

         17  respond to, I respect that effort and appreciate

         18  that, and I do not find that you have been less than

         19  cooperative. I think you have been.

         20                 I think also you have found that this

         21  Committee has attempted to be cooperative with you

         22  as well, and we certainly expect that relationship

         23  to continue.

         24                 My questions are not based on the

         25  fact of your lack of cooperation, just on a desire
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          2  for information that I think we as a Committee ought

          3  to ask these questions, and that there is an ability

          4  to provide that information.

          5                 I believe, and I would like to know,

          6  when you talk about job -- you said the job centers,

          7  are those the new centers that change over from the

          8  income maintenance centers to job centers? So those

          9  are really City centers?

         10                 MR. BARSKY: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: So that means

         12  that they are still working in centers that are

         13  controlled by the City of New York. So, the

         14  information is there within HRA and they are not

         15  working in strange surroundings, but they are

         16  working in centers that formerly were the income

         17  maintenance centers and now they have been given new

         18  nomenclature, and the new nomenclature is simply

         19  that you are no longer an income maintenance center,

         20  which implies that we are here to provide you with a

         21  check, but you are now here in a job center and that

         22  we are here to provide you with employment; that is

         23  the only difference the Mayor means, is that

         24  correct?

         25                 MR. BARSKY: That's correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: So all of the

          3  records, if you are still assigned to that

          4  particular center is they are right there; isn't

          5  that correct?

          6                 MR. BARSKY: That's correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: So, nothing has

          8  changed.

          9                 MR. BARKSY: Well, the only thing that

         10  has changed is the focus behind HRA's policy and its

         11  efforts whereby WEP is not being used as a primary

         12  way in which to engage people into work, so it has

         13  changed.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I don't question

         15  that. I don't question that. What I was trying to

         16  find was the number of people, where are they

         17  assigned, what agencies outside of HRA they are

         18  assigned to, how many are assigned to what agencies,

         19  where do they come from, which is very interesting

         20  to me and should be to you, and certainly in terms

         21  of these assignments, how many of them lead to real

         22  jobs.

         23                 For instance, we know that there are

         24  a large number of them in parks. We know that there

         25  were a number of them who were doing work on streets
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          2  and cleaning lots, which would have been the sole

          3  model cities program of lot cleaning.

          4                 Now, there is some, we understand,

          5  who work in -- what is it, the landmarks -- what's

          6  the agency? Oh, the Landmarks Agency. Some are in

          7  court. How many? How did you decide who would work

          8  there and who would work on street cleaning? And how

          9  did you make the decision in CUNY who could work, go

         10  to school and who could not go to school? How many

         11  are in CUNY going to school? How many are not going

         12  to school? I want that kind of information. We are

         13  entitled to that kind of information.

         14                 HRA has all of that information,

         15  nothing has changed. The only thing that changes is

         16  you are no longer at DeKalb, which was an income

         17  maintenance center, you go to DeKalb which is now an

         18  employment center, that's the only difference.

         19                 So, everything that they needed

         20  before is still where it was, and that is all we are

         21  asking for.

         22                 MR. BARSKY: Sure.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: We are not

         24  expecting you to judge the program, we are not

         25  asking you to change the law because we understand
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          2  that you did not enact the law, you are making use

          3  of the law. We may differ in some points as to

          4  whether or not the law could be utilized that way,

          5  or if there are changes that could be made, but in

          6  this particular instance what we are looking for

          7  happens to be the numbers, and how we can get a

          8  fuller picture of what is happening inside the WEP

          9  program, and will you be reporting on the

         10  initiatives in upcoming PMMRs and MMRs?

         11                 The City I don't believe should have

         12  anything to hide, in terms of their use of this

         13  program, and if they have nothing to hide, they

         14  would share that information with us.

         15                 This is an honest use of a program,

         16  let everybody see what it is. Let us all know what

         17  it is, how it is being utilized, where it is being

         18  utilized, who is in the program, that is what we are

         19  asking.

         20                 MR. BARSKY: Fine.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: And we

         22  appreciate your cooperation.

         23                 MR. BARSKY: Sure.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: And we

         25  understand that you don't make the rules, but to the
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          2  degree that it is possible, we are asking for your

          3  cooperation on that.

          4                 My next question would be the

          5  following: You mentioned the strategic plans, and

          6  you said there was an overall plan -- agency that

          7  would encompass agencies; do you have a Citywide

          8  plan or are there agency plans?

          9                 For instance, if I am part of HHC, is

         10  there a separate plan for HHC? Is there a separate

         11  plan for HRA? Is there a separate plan for DCAS? Or

         12  is there one Citywide plan and all of them must fit

         13  into that agenda?

         14                 MR. BARSKY: I believe agency

         15  strategic plans are done on an agency by agency

         16  basis, but that does serve as a foundation for this

         17  larger document which is the statement of -- the

         18  strategic planning statement that is required by the

         19  Charter in which those initiatives that have a

         20  common theme are then presented in ways that cut

         21  across a variety of agencies, so you would see it

         22  more likely there than anywhere else.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Now, who is

         24  preparing that?

         25                 MR. BARSKY: That is being coordinated
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          2  by the Department of City Planning.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: All right, that

          4  is being coordinated by the Department of City

          5  Planning but there is also a requirement, as I

          6  understand it, that that plan be shared with the

          7  City Council --

          8                 MR. BARSKY: That's correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: And so that

         10  entire plan, whether it is agencywide, and all of

         11  the agencies involved should be made available to

         12  the City Council; is that correct?

         13                 MR. BARSKY: Yes, I think that is

         14  something you would probably have to raise with the

         15  Department of City Planning since it is their

         16  project.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: If you have an

         18  umbrella, and everybody has a different spoke in

         19  that umbrella and not one document, not one seamless

         20  document, then of course there has to be some way of

         21  indicating what the variations are for the various

         22  agencies. We need to know that. We need to know

         23  where the variances are.

         24                 We can't talk about a criteria that

         25  is not applicable to everyone. We need to know who
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          2  is covered under this umbrella, and what the

          3  exceptions are and where these exceptions are in

          4  place.

          5                 Does that make sense to you, sir?

          6                 MR. BARSKY: Sure.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: So that is what

          8  we would like to know. So that is what we would like

          9  to know, and we would like to know when we could

         10  possibly expect see that plan?

         11                 We understand that it takes time to

         12  mix the cake but we would like to see it before you

         13  take it out of the oven.

         14                 MR. BARSKY: Okay, well, I will be in

         15  touch with the Department of City Planning, and as

         16  soon as they let me know, I will certainly forward

         17  it over to you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you so

         19  much.

         20                 You have explained that the central

         21  purpose of the MMR is to influence the allocation

         22  and the use of the City's resources. Given the

         23  current format of the MMR and the budget, how do we

         24  measure whether you are fulfilling this central

         25  purposes? There are so many places that are sort of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            54

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  not known to us. It is sort of difficult for us to

          3  measure. We trust you and we want to believe you.

          4  Through no fault of our own and not of your own

          5  making, I am sure, there are places that we can't

          6  fill. We don't have adequate information. That means

          7  there is a gap in the information that we need to

          8  have completed.

          9                 Is it possible that our Council and

         10  our fiscal people can meet with your people in order

         11  to make known to you our concerns in order to

         12  clarify those areas of concern so that before we

         13  adopt a budget and with our investigation unit we

         14  have this information?

         15                 MR. BARSKY: Sure, whatever

         16  information that we currently report we would be

         17  happy to share with you, and we try to keep an open

         18  dialogue with your staff on a regular basis and we

         19  have met with them recently so we will be happy to

         20  continue to do that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Well, if this is

         22  to influence the allocation in the use of the City's

         23  resources and it has an impact on the current

         24  formula and the budget, we would need it now, would

         25  we not?
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          2                 MR. BARSKY: Sure.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay.

          4                 MR. BARSKY: Please provide me with

          5  whatever specific information or requests you have

          6  and we will try to do the best we can to provide it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay, I am sure

          8  you will.

          9                 And do you know whether the OMB is

         10  planning to or would like to remove the real

         11  obstacle to performance-based budgeting; and that is

         12  the nature and the structure of the City budget, as

         13  you explained in your April 22nd letter?

         14                 MR. BARSKY: Well, I don't believe

         15  that the budget is actually going through what you

         16  would call full fledged performance-based budgeting;

         17  however, not only is our management structure, but

         18  many of our financial processes are moving in fact

         19  towards being performance-based.

         20                 We have significantly shifted our

         21  requirements through our contracting process. One of

         22  the things that has happened over the last several

         23  years that many functions of the City are being

         24  performed in partnership with other providers on a

         25  contractual basis. Those contracts now have been

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            56

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  adhered to or have been mandated to be on a

          3  performance-based contract, such that the

          4  compensation or the continuation of the contract

          5  will be based and monitored on performance; such as

          6  we have been trying to institute with many of our

          7  other contracts, whether they be labor contracts or

          8  otherwise. So, the move towards performance-based,

          9  whether it be in our indicators or measures or

         10  contracts or our collective bargaining agreements

         11  are all trending in that direction, which will have

         12  the effect of making the budget more

         13  performance-based than it had been in the past.

         14                 So, in that regard they are becoming

         15  somewhat of a nexus between those two issues so we

         16  see that to be an area that is being looked at and

         17  used consistently.

         18                 We have always tried to have a good

         19  relationship and dialogue with OMB to let them look

         20  at the information as we see it, to look at areas

         21  where there may be a deficiency to see whether or

         22  not it is an allocation or resource issue, and other

         23  areas in which we can engage them.

         24                 One of the things we have done also

         25  in the area of strategic planning this year, we have
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          2  created for the first time a technology steering

          3  committee that is comprised of the Mayor's Office of

          4  Operations, the Department of Information,

          5  Technology and Telecommunications and OMB, and we

          6  have provided a strategic policy document for the

          7  technology needs of the City going forward to try to

          8  make sure that that is done in a cohesive way and

          9  create standards and ensure that the needs that are

         10  being required by the City are also being looked at

         11  by OMB to make sure that the proper budgeting takes

         12  place so that agencies can move to the next level in

         13  terms of the technology demands and challenges that

         14  they see before them.

         15                 So, all of these things are happening

         16  and we believe that it is moving more general to

         17  being performance-based.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I believe it is

         19  good that things are being examined at their task

         20  force, the only problem I have is that it seems to

         21  me everything is within the City agencies itself.

         22  There is no one from outside to breathe a breath of

         23  fresh air, and it does seem to me that possibly some

         24  of the agencies could benefit and the City as a

         25  whole by having people other than agencies of the
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          2  city participate in some of the task force.

          3                 Imagine how you would feel if you

          4  went to Harvard to a task force and the entire panel

          5  constituted itself of just Harvard professors who

          6  would say gee wiz, how do I get to hear something

          7  other than one point of view? And maybe we ought to

          8  have some other people on those task forces.

          9                 MR. BARSKY: Sure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: It might make a

         11  difference.

         12                 I think, though, that you are trying

         13  and I would thank you at least for attempting to

         14  keep us informed, but I do believe that it is

         15  important to have more people involved, and I

         16  appreciate your presence and the information you

         17  have presented.

         18                 MR. BARSKY: I guess the only examples

         19  I can give you where we have done that, especially

         20  by specifically including Council more in the

         21  processes. As you know, we have a declaration of the

         22  Transitional Finance Authority that is doing the

         23  financing of the infrastructure needs for the City

         24  for the next four or five years. The City Council is

         25  a member of that Authority and on that Board and is
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          2  part of that process.

          3                 As you heard the Mayor explain

          4  recently, he wants to engage the City Council,

          5  working very closely with him on developing the

          6  educational needs for the City going out forward.

          7                 We have also included the City

          8  Council and members of the City Council Speaker

          9  staff in the task force on Tax Reduction which

         10  recently was included in the budget, that had a

         11  direct input and participation from the City

         12  Council, as represented on that task force.

         13                 So, we have been looking at

         14  opportunities where we can to have that kind of

         15  inclusive input and dialogue, and we have made good

         16  use of it so it has been happening.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay, I think

         18  one day we will surprise them and we will invite him

         19  to come in on a topic that we select.

         20                 MR. BARSKY: Sure.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: And that will be

         22  interesting in terms of the response.

         23                 I want to thank you. If there are any

         24  further questions?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Council Member

          3  Rivera would like to make a statement for the

          4  record.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Yes. I just

          6  very lightly wanted to touch on the intent to,

          7  hopefully squeeze out more juice out of an orange. I

          8  do not know at this stage how many people we have

          9  anymore working in any of these City agencies, but

         10  one of the areas that my understanding is that what

         11  you are proposing here would not in any way effect

         12  or involve the budget management office; is that a

         13  clear understanding?

         14                 MR. BARSKY: We are in constant

         15  contact with them, we work with them on all of these

         16  --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: It is just

         18  that I am frustrated. The reason why I am taking

         19  this opportunity is because I am frustrated.

         20                 My colleague here, Philip Reed,

         21  reminds all of us that we are about six months into

         22  the year and the Chairlady just reminded us we are

         23  no longer six months into the year of '99, we are at

         24  the end of the budget process, and there is still

         25  when we deal, when we talk about trying to get some
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          2  of these agencies or departments to stop giving us

          3  excuses and deal with results, one of them that I

          4  would like something to be done about is the Office

          5  of Budget, because we are about right now to

          6  negotiate a new budget and because we had it out

          7  with the Administration, we came out with our own

          8  budget, some of our districts, our community, have

          9  been affected by that and they have yet to receive a

         10  dime from last year's budget.

         11                 So, when we talk about getting these

         12  agency officers to be more effective, this is one

         13  area that hopefully somebody would do something

         14  about.

         15                 I just thought I would share that

         16  with you.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 MR. BARSKY: Okay. Thank you. Thank

         19  you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you very

         21  much, and thank you, Council Member Rivera.

         22                 Before you leave, I would like you to

         23  all know -- don't leave, because you are talking

         24  about people who contribute. I heard you when you

         25  made that statement, Mr. Commissioner, in terms of
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          2  your acknowledging contributions, and so you

          3  negotiate based upon what people do. I don't think

          4  the City could pay, but I would like to acknowledge

          5  not only -- I indicated all of the Council members

          6  who were present, I would like to acknowledge the

          7  staff who helps to make this Committee function and

          8  I think effectively.

          9                 Seated to my right is Jay Damashek,

         10  who is the legal and governmental affairs, our

         11  Counsel. Peter Mameli and Corey Speweik and Marie

         12  Lemmo and Beatrice Mael, for our oversight and

         13  investigation. Mark Young, Regina Ryan, Darren Bloch

         14  from Finance and Eileen McKenna. Barbara Montefel,

         15  who is our legislative and policy analyst, and of

         16  course, the people who make it work for us is our

         17  Sergeant Nick Economou, and William Endall and

         18  Israel Martinez. That means the team that works

         19  together makes this function.

         20                 Now, we don't do this based upon any

         21  kind of holding a gun to anybody's head, that is a

         22  bad analogy, but we do believe that everyone

         23  contributes to making this a successful endeavor.

         24                 So, in this Committee we acknowledge

         25  the efforts of everyone in making this a successful
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          2  endeavor.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 And now we will call Glenn Pasanen.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Have we

          6  requested that somebody from Government Operations

          7  stay to hear perhaps from, as you said, somebody

          8  other than Harvard -- I mean the Administration,

          9  thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Someone has just

         11  sat down because they heard your persuasive voice.

         12  Thank you.

         13                 Please identify yourself by name and

         14  organization.

         15                 MR. PASANEN: Thank you, Madame Chair.

         16  My name is Glenn Pasanen, I am Associate Director of

         17  City Project and I thank you for the chance to

         18  testify.

         19                 Councilman Reed, I am not used to a

         20  large audience, so I am comfortable under the

         21  current circumstances.

         22                 It is a beautiful day, I agree with

         23  you, and I will be brief. The beauty of the day, I

         24  must say is marred a bit by the continued process

         25  outside, the screening process that makes it
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          2  difficult for even experienced testifiers like

          3  myself to get into City Hall. We continue to be

          4  relegated to the basement entrance and that sends a

          5  signal that all of us I guess out there are second

          6  class citizens when we come to City Hall. I know you

          7  are interested in pursuing that problem but it does

          8  persist.

          9                 Briefly, City Project has published

         10  nine analyses of the Mayor's Management Report and

         11  we will publish a tenth report on the current PMMR

         12  in the near future.

         13                 We expect at this point to say much

         14  the same thing we have been saying for five years,

         15  the MMR can be useful because it does contain a lot

         16  of raw data, that gives some clues about what is

         17  happening in the City. But in its current format and

         18  style, it does not adequately meet its key City

         19  Charter mandate to measure performance against

         20  policy.

         21                 The Council of course knows the

         22  problems better than we do, and first of all, I

         23  would like to commend this Committee and the other

         24  Committees of the Council for their work in filling

         25  the vacuum that the current administration has
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          2  created.

          3                 We have repeatedly said that if we

          4  want to judge the success of City management, then

          5  we increasingly must look elsewhere for the

          6  objective and incisive reporting that is missing in

          7  this Administration's MMR.

          8                 Beyond the Council we must look also

          9  to academic experts, non-profit research

         10  organizations, and we have suggested several times

         11  management consultants. And should there be a

         12  Charter Revision Commission formed in the near

         13  future, part of its agenda should be a consideration

         14  of a new independent agency for management review,

         15  perhaps modeled on the City's Independent Budget

         16  Office, or the federal general accounting office.

         17                 In the meantime, I encourage the

         18  Council to continue its management studies in

         19  specific areas. The current MMR has created so many

         20  new measures and so much soft data, like these

         21  interminable internal agency surveys, that the

         22  Council studies are a refreshing reminder of what is

         23  really important.

         24                 I might add that I am interested in

         25  the focus on your briefing paper on strategic
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          2  planning, in no way it seems to me, does the current

          3  format of the MMR encourage anything like that, and

          4  so that is an exercise in frustration, I think,

          5  looking ahead.

          6                 Some of the management areas we think

          7  deserve the most attention are familiar to the

          8  Council. City Project has long had an interest in

          9  these areas - welfare reform, Police Department

         10  management, the fire, EMS merger, contracting more

         11  recently, work force management and economic

         12  development. Each of these areas has enormous fiscal

         13  and social importance and judgments about them are

         14  impossible in the current MMR.

         15                 Just a few examples. We have called

         16  the Mayor's Plan to end welfare by the Year 2000 a

         17  bogus goal, unsupported by any available evidence.

         18                 We have called attention to a police

         19   "youth strategy" that had police officers intervene

         20  with over 255,000 youth in Fiscal 1998 alone. And in

         21  the context of recent concerns in the Police

         22  Department, I think that is a particularly important

         23  area.

         24                 The same youth strategy uses a drug

         25  education program that some researchers say does
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          2  more harm than good.

          3                 On the Fire/EMS merger, Alan Finder

          4  reports in today's New York Times that there are

          5  still major questions about the results of the

          6  Fire/EMS merger, a topic of special interest I know

          7  to the Public Safety Committee, and one with huge

          8  fiscal and social consequences.

          9                 We think the contracting process,

         10  which we have gotten involved in in the past year,

         11  needs two new tracking and oversight mechanisms to

         12  help the hundreds of community groups that are held

         13  hostage in the current political and administrative

         14  processes.

         15                 I was encouraged by the suggestion of

         16  the Director that they may be able to expand the MMR

         17  work in that area. Claude Millman, Director of the

         18  Mayor's Office of Contracts, said a similar thing a

         19  couple of weeks ago at a hearing here in response in

         20  part to a study that we had done, and we will keep

         21  an eye on that. It will be easy to do and it will

         22  help many of the groups that complain I know to

         23  Council Members.

         24                 We also think it would be helpful to

         25  have more analyses of the dramatic changes in

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            68

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  workforce management. I don't think it is just

          3  workfare, I think it is a larger question of

          4  part-timers, there is a question about temporary

          5  jobs.

          6                 We have said in our MMRs more than

          7  once that when you look at all of these things and

          8  put them together, the City really has a larger

          9  workforce under this Administration than we had at

         10  the end of the Dinkins Administration, it is just

         11  that it is a different workforce, and there are many

         12  problems that you are quite familiar with, I won't

         13  go into, that are a consequence of that process.

         14                 But I would say a study that looks at

         15  all of those pieces would be an eye opener for all

         16  of us.

         17                 Finally, the Mayor's extensive use of

         18  economic development as a rationale for

         19  discretionary tax concessions needs close study. We

         20  are facing a choice about certain new business taxes

         21  in this current executive budget and we don't have

         22  good evidence to have a discussion about that.

         23                 Otherwise we will continue to throw

         24  money at corporations that are doing very well

         25  without City help.
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          2                 The Council has highlighted many of

          3  these problems and you gave credit to your staff a

          4  few minutes ago and I want to underline how helpful

          5  your staff has been to us in various endeavors, some

          6  of which I have alluded to today and I thank you and

          7  them for that help.

          8                 We only urge you to consider

          9  additional monitoring strategies that throw more

         10  light on these problems and then better illustrate

         11  executive accountability, the thing that we are all

         12  interested in.

         13                 Thanks for the chance to testify.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you for

         15  your testimony, and the insight in terms of the

         16  diversion of the full-time employee and the

         17  part-timers who are no longer paid at the same rate

         18  as the old part-timers.

         19                 MR. PASANEN: Absolutely.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: And they have

         21  lost also the benefits of the higher salary to

         22  compensate for being a part-timer, which is another

         23  factor that no one considered also.

         24                 MR. PASANEN: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you.
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          2                 Is there anyone who wished to offer

          3  testimony present whose name was not called?

          4                 Is there anyone present who wished to

          5  offer testimony whose name was not called?

          6                 Is there anyone present who wished to

          7  offer testimony whose name was not called?

          8                 Hearing and seeing none, this hearing

          9  is adjourned.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 (Hearing concluded at 1:35 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 26th day of April 1999.
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